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One of the most striking 
buildings in the Alameda 

Civic Center is the Elks Lodge, a 
palatial example of the Classical 
Revival architecture popular in 1910 
when the place opened at 2255 Santa 
Clara Avenue. The national “Benevo-
lent Protective Order of Elks” (BPOE) 
was founded in New York City as an 
informal club for actors, entertainers,  
and theatrical agents called “The 

Jolly Corks.” Their members decided 
that the “Corks” should organize as a 
lodge along benevolent and fraternal 
lines with formal rules, a suitable 
ritual, and a new name. “The Royal 
Antediluvian Order of Buffalos” was 
first suggested, but after reading 
about the elk as “fleet of foot and 
ever ready to defend itself or the 
female of the species,” organizers  
put forth that name instead.

On February 16, 1868, the “Jolly 
Corks” emerged in New York City as 
the BPOE. The men’s club grew in 
stature throughout the United States, 
and in 1906 a group of Alamedans 
formed their own lodge, number 1015. 
They then embarked on a construction  
project that eventually created an 
impressive local landmark.
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local landmark:  
an ornament to the community

by Judith Lynch

The Alameda Elks Lodge stands proudly beside City Hall on Santa Clara Avenue. In this photo, part of the City Hall tower has already been 
removed for seismic safety after the 1906 earthquake. Image: Alameda Museum.


















